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)
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)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 08-1848 MC



)

RAYMOND AND SHANNA YOUNG, d/b/a
)

RAY’S GENERAL CONTRACTING, 
)




)



Respondent. 
)

DECISION

We grant the motion for summary determination filed by the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”).  Raymond and Shanna Young (“the Youngs”) violated a federal law.

Procedure


On October 30, 2008, the MHTC filed a complaint alleging that the Youngs violated a federal law.  The Youngs were served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by personal service on or around November 11, 2008.
  The Youngs did not file an answer to the complaint.  On February 13, 2009, the MHTC filed a motion for 
summary determination.  Pursuant to § 536.073.3, RSMo 2000,
 our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.446(5)A provides that we may decide this case without a hearing if the MHTC establishes facts that (a) the Youngs do not dispute and (b) entitle the MHTC to a favorable decision.


We gave the Youngs until March 2, 2009, to respond to the motion, but they did not.  Therefore, the following facts as established by the MHTC's exhibits are undisputed.

Findings of Fact

1. The Youngs do business as Ray’s General Contracting, located at 13474 Highway 24, Lexington, Missouri, 64067.  
2. On September 20, 2007, the Youngs paid their employee, RC Wilson, Jr., to operate a commercial motor vehicle (“CMV”), a 2005 Ford truck with a gross vehicle weight rating (“GVWR”) of 10,000 pounds, along with a 2002 Serr Trailer, with a GVWR of 18,000 pounds, in intrastate commerce transporting property from Lexington, Missouri, to Independence, Missouri, when Wilson did not have the required commercial driver’s license (“CDL”). 
3. Wilson held a Class B CDL when a Class A CDL was required.

Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that the Youngs have violated the law.
 

Count I:  Violation of 49 CFR § 383.23(a) (Commercial Driver’s License)
The MHTC’s complaint alleges that the Youngs violated 49 CFR § 383.23(a): 

(a) General rule.
(1) Effective April 1, 1992, no person shall operate a commercial motor vehicle unless such person has taken and passed written and driving tests which meet the Federal standards contained in Subparts F, G, and H of this part for the commercial motor vehicle that person operates or expects to operate.
(2) Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this section, no person may legally operate a CMV unless such person possesses a CDL which meets the standards contained in subpart J of this part, issued by his/her State or jurisdiction of domicile.

(Emphasis added.)  The MHTC has the authority to enforce Part 383 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

Definitions for Part 383 are found in Regulation 49 CFR 383.5:

Commerce means (a) any trade, traffic or transportation within the jurisdiction of the United States between a place in a State and a place outside of such State, including a place outside of the United States and (b) trade, traffic, and transportation in the United States which affects any trade, traffic, and transportation described in paragraph (a) of this definition.
Commercial driver’s license (CDL) means a license issued by a State or other jurisdiction, in accordance with the standards contained in 49 CFR Part 383, to an individual which authorizes the individual to operate a class of a commercial motor vehicle.
*   *   *

Commercial motor vehicle (CMV) means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to transport passengers or property if the motor vehicle –

(a) has a gross combination weight rating of 11,794 kilograms or more (26,001 pounds or more) inclusive of a towed unit(s) with a gross vehicle weight rating of more than 4,536 kilograms (10,000 pounds); or

(b) Has a gross vehicle weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 pounds or more)[.]

*   *   *

Gross combination weight rating (GCWR) means the value specified by the manufacturer as the loaded weight of a combination (articulated) vehicle.  In the absence of a value specified by the manufacturer, GCWR will be determined by adding the GVWR of the power unit and the total weight of the towed unit and any load thereon.

Gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) means the value specified by the manufacturer as the loaded weight of a single vehicle.

*   *   *

Motor vehicle means a vehicle, machine, tractor, trailer, or semitrailer propelled or drawn by mechanical power used on highways, except that such term does not include a vehicle, machine, tractor, trailer, semitrailer operated exclusively on a rail.
(Emphasis added.)


Based on the definition of commercial motor vehicle, the Ford would not be a commercial motor vehicle because it was not used in commerce – which is defined as interstate commerce.  But 49 CFR § 383.3(a) states:  “The rules in this part apply to every person who operates a commercial motor vehicle (CMV) in interstate, foreign, or intrastate commerce, to all employers of such persons, and to all States.”  Therefore, even though it traveled only in intrastate commerce, the Ford could be a commercial motor vehicle if it meets the other requirements of the definition.

The Ford had a GVWR of 10,000 pounds, and the Serr Trailer had a GVWR of 18,000 pounds.  Together they had a GCWR that was over 26,001 pounds.  The vehicle being towed had a GVWR of more than 10,001 pounds.  The truck/trailer was a commercial motor vehicle.  

Regulation 49 CFR 383.5 also provides the following definitions:
Employee means any operator of a commercial motor vehicle, including full time, regularly employed drivers; casual, intermittent or occasional drivers; leased drivers and independent, owner-operator contractors (while in the course of operating a commercial motor vehicle) who are either directly employed by or under lease to an employer.

Employer means any person (including the United States, a State, District of Columbia or a political subdivision of a State) who owns or leases a commercial motor vehicle or assigns employees to operate such a vehicle.

Because the Youngs assigned and paid an employee to operate a commercial motor vehicle, they met the definition of an employer.  They were employers who were responsible for their employee, Wilson.


The MHTC argues that Wilson did not have the required class CDL.  Regulation 12 CSR 10-24.200 sets forth six classes of driver license classes.  In order to drive the combination vehicle, Wilson needed a Class A CDL:
The holder of a Class A license may drive any combination of vehicles with a Gross Combination Weight Rating (GCWR) of twenty-six thousand one pounds (26,001 lbs.) or more, provided the Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (GVWR) of the vehicle(s) being towed is ten thousand one pounds (10,  001 lbs.) or more[.
]

Wilson had a Class B license, which authorized him to drive a vehicle towing another vehicle with a GVWR of 10,000 pounds or less.  By allowing Wilson to drive a commercial motor vehicle without the required license, the Youngs violated a federal law.
Summary


The Youngs violated 49 CFR § 383.23(a) by allowing their employee to drive a commercial motor vehicle without the required license. We grant the motion for summary determination and cancel the hearing. 

SO ORDERED on March 24, 2009.



________________________________



JOHN J. KOPP


Commissioner

�Raymond Young’s certified mail card is dated November 11, 2008, and was filed in our office on November 12, 2008.  Shanna Young’s certified mail card is not dated and was filed in our office on November 13, 2008.


	�Statutory references, unless otherwise noted, are to RSMo Supp. 2008.


	�The MHTC also asks that we deem the allegations in its complaint admitted because the Youngs never responded to it.  The MHTC relies on Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.425(1)(A) and (2)(B), which allow us to sanction a party who does not file an answer by “[d]eeming all or any part of an opposing party’s pleading admitted[.]”  We need not rule on this because the MREC proved its case through evidence presented.  


�12 CSR 10-24.200(2) and (3).


	�Sections 621.040 and 226.008.4.  


	�Section 622.350.


	�Section 226.008.2(1) and §§ 390.201 and 622.550, RSMo 2000.


�The MHTC cites the definitions in 49 CFR § 390.5 and § 382.107.


�Regulations 49 CFR § 390.11; 49 CFR § 383.3(a)and (b).  The MHTC’s complaint alleges that the Youngs violated § 390.11.  This regulation provides that the duties of a driver are also the duties of the motor carrier.  It is not a provision that can be violated.


�12 CSR 10-24.200(2).
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